CITY OF STOCKTON

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP)

TO PROVIDE ELIGIBILITY SYSTEM

(PUR 16-006)

PROPONENT’S QUESTIONNAIRE

Questionnaire Instructions to Proponents

***DO NOT ALTER THE QUESTIONS OR QUESTION NUMBERING***.

· Provide an answer to each question even if the answer is “not applicable” or “unknown.”  Incomplete questionnaires may be cause for disqualification.

· Answer the question as directly as possible.

· If the questions asks “How many…” provide a number

· If the question asks, “Do you…” indicate Yes or No first, followed by your additional narrative explanation.

· Lengthy responses are less preferred, please be concise and use bullet points as appropriate. Do not refer the reader to an appendix or attachment for further information.

· Proponent will be held accountable for accuracy/validity of all answers.

· Remember, RFP responses will become part of the contract between the winning Proponent and the City.

NOTE:
Please make sure to include an electronic copy of your completed questionnaire in Word Format on the CD with your response.
DO NOT ALTER THE QUESTIONS

GENERAL RFP REQUIREMENTS

For this section of the questionnaire, answer the question/requirement with a simple “Yes” or “No” answer.  If you answer “No” to any of the questions/requirements in this section, please explain the response at the end of the section.  The explanation will be reviewed, however, failure to agree to all of the terms requested in this section may cause the City to deem your proposal non-responsive.

	1. Do you agree that if this proposal results in your company being awarded a contract and if, in the preparation of that contract, there are inconsistencies between what was proposed and accepted versus the contract language that has been generated and executed, that any controversy arising over such discrepancy will be resolved in favor of the language contained in the proposal or correspondence relating to your proposal?
	( Yes  (  No

	2. Will you agree to be bound by the terms of your proposal until a final contract is executed? 
	( Yes  (  No

	3. Do you agree to all the terms and conditions in Section I of this RFP?
	( Yes  (  No

	4. You will be required to issue the Contract within thirty (30) calendar days after being given a Notice of Intent to Award unless waived by the City.  Please confirm your acceptance of this requirement.
	( Yes  (  No

	5. Confirm that your proposed fees are guaranteed for 36 months.  
	( Yes  (  No

	6. Confirm that your proposed fees are also guaranteed for the two (2) Option Years 4 & 5, to be exercised at the discretion of the City.
	( Yes  (  No

	7. Please confirm that there will be no adjustments to the proposed fees and/or rates based on actual enrollment or subsequent shifts in enrollment.
	( Yes  (  No

	8. The City requires that it maintain the right to terminate the contract at any time provided that it gives 60 days advance written notification to the contractor.  Do you agree to this provision?
	( Yes  (  No

	9. Will you transfer administrative records to any vendor that would replace you in the event of termination of this contract at no charge?  
	( Yes  (  No

	10. Confirm that your service team supporting the City’s Benefit Management will be available to the City Personnel during normal business hours for the operation of the City.
	( Yes  (  No

	11. Will you agree to accept any specified eligibility rule established by the City?
	( Yes  (  No

	12. Will you agree to include in your contract a hold harmless provision that indemnifies the City against liability that arises as the result of negligent acts, errors, omissions, fraud and other criminal acts committed by your officers, employees, and agents of the organization?
	( Yes  (  No

	13. Do you agree to maintain compliance with HIPAA privacy and security for the duration of the contract with the City?
	( Yes  (  No

	14. Confirm that your company is in compliance with all state and federal laws applicable to the programs you are proposing or the services you will provide.
	( Yes  (  No

	15. Do you agree to provide monthly, quarterly, and annual reporting (i.e., administrative costs/premium, claims, enrollment and utilization)? 
- Enrollment: Monthly


- Administrative costs/premium: Monthly
- Claims: Monthly including large claim reports
- Utilization: Quarterly; Semi-Annual and Annual
- ACA data requirements; when needed
	( Yes  (  No

	16. Do you agree to commence work prior to the contract start date to ensure a smooth transition during the 2017 open enrollment period?
	( Yes  (  No

	17. Do you agree to perform all services listed under section 2.1, Scope of Work?
	( Yes  (  No

	18. Does your proposed fee include all services listed under section 2.1, Scope of Work?
	( Yes  (  No

	Explain any “No” answer provided in the requirements above:




Company Background/Profile

1. How long has your company been operational? Has your company been known by any other names(s) in the last ten years? Is your company a division or subsidiary of a parent firm? 
2. Where is your company’s home office located? Please list all the locations that will be providing the systems and services you are proposing in your RFP response.

3. How many employees are currently employed at your company?  How many are employed at the offices that would be serving the City?

4. Do you plan to sub-contract any portion of the systems or services required to another firm? If yes, please answer the following:

· Which of the systems or services would you plan to sub-contract and to which company?

· Would you take responsibility for the quality, timeliness and accuracy of these systems/ services?

· Describe how your staff would interface with the staff of the sub-contractor(s).

5. As the contract will be issued in the state of California, please confirm that the contract will be in full accord with the laws of that jurisdiction.

6. Please provide any proposed changes to the City’s master contract under Appendix B.
7. Designate the individual(s) with the following responsibilities. Include the name, title, and address of each individual, along with a brief description of his/her qualifications and experience.

	
	Response

	The individual(s) representing your company during the proposal process
	

	The individual(s), who will be assigned to the overall ongoing management of City account
	


Financial Profile

All financial information will be held in confidence.

8. Give a brief description of your company's financial structure, including ownership and general financial condition. 

9. Provide the latest annual report or other financial reports (including audited financial statements) that indicate the financial position of your organization. If your company is privately held, list owners with 5 percent or more of equity.

10. Has your company ever been involved in any litigation or are there any outstanding legal actions pending regarding the proposed product/services? If yes, please explain the nature and current status of the action(s). Are there any outstanding legal actions pending that would affect your ability to provide the requested services? If yes, please explain.

11. Has your company, its affiliates or any of its staff, principals or owners ever been subject to a governmental or criminal investigation involving the requested services? Please describe.

12. Please describe any type of external audits performed of your operations including but not limited to SSAE 16 (SAS-70) and the frequency of these audits.  

13. The proposer may be asked to participate in audits on behalf of the City. Please confirm that you will agree to cooperate fully in any requests for audit and you will provide all system data elements requested by the City’s auditor. What, if any, restrictions would apply?

14. What fidelity and surety insurance or bond coverage do you carry to protect your clients?  Specifically describe the type and amount of the fidelity bond insuring your employees that would protect the City in the event of a loss. Please provide a copy of your insurance certificate.

15. Has your firm or any client administered by your firm ever sustained a fidelity loss or claim?  If yes, please provide details.

16. Indicate your firm’s liability insurance limit with regard to errors, omission, negligence, etc.  Please include deductible and annual limit (per occurrence and aggregate) information and name of insurer. Please provide a copy of your insurance certificate.

17. Are there any pending investigations, regulatory proceedings, license renewals, litigation or legal actions concerning your organization or any employee of your company? If so, please explain the nature and current status of the action(s). 

Organizational Experience and References

18. Describe your company’s experience providing eligibility and enrollment systems for health and welfare plans. How long has your firm been providing these types of systems? 

19. Of your company's current clients, what five would be viewed as peer groups for the systems and services requested by the City? Please Provide the names of five (5) accounts for which you are presently providing enrollment and eligibility systems/services similar to those that you are proposing. Include the following information:

· Client name

· Principal location

· Client contact including name, title, and phone number

· Systems/services provided 

· Effective date of contract

20. Has any client terminated the services of your firm during the past ten years? If so, please provide the names along with the reason for each termination. May they be contacted?
Eligibility and Enrollment Administration

21. Please provide examples of eligibility systems and services outlined in this RFP that you have performed for other clients.
22. Describe your eligibility/enrollment system and how the system would track and capture eligibility/enrollment information for the City. Please be specific.

23. Can the system/web portal be personalized for the City? Please be specific.
24. Can the City’s identified system administrator make changes to your system’s configurations (e.g., benefit plan options, premiums, eligibility, etc.)?

25. Can confirmation statements be printed when the City has completed the online enrollment process? 

26. Does the system store and display current dependent data including the benefits the dependents are enrolled in? 

27. Does the system store and display current Coordination of Benefits (COB) information for the employee and dependents?

28. Describe your system’s capabilities related to COBRA Administration and self-billing.

29. Is there a limit to the number of the City’s staff that could act as a system administrator and/or have access to the system? Is pricing based on the number of users?
30. How many days of training will be provided to the City and its staff? 

31. Describe how you provide system support. Do you have a call center or online help desk ticketing process for submitting issues? What is your response time for support issues?
32. What are your support hours? How do you handle support issues during non-business hours?

33. Does the system include any help screens? If so, describe the various help features. 

Eligibility and Enrollment System

34. Please describe your eligibility/enrollment system (hardware, platform, software, real-time, etc.). Do you expect any major software or hardware updates in the next 1 – 3 years? 

35. Describe how the eligibility/enrollment system is accessible to the City and from where. How is the site accessible to participants?
36. Describe your minimum browser requirements.

37. What provider hosts (physically) your system(s) and/or web sites, or are they self-hosted? Where is the facility?  

38. How is physical security provided? What are your firewall policies?

39. Does the system include a secure site with secure individual login ID and password for all users? If yes, how are ID’s and passwords generated? 

40. Are all system transactions date and time stamped?

41. Do you have a system and data file back-up policy? If yes, please outline. If it includes off-site storage of back-up media, please give address of such site and frequency.

42. Describe your disaster recovery program and business resumption strategy.

43. Is the eligibility/enrollment system compatible with all major internet browsers and all major operating systems?
44. Describe your readiness and capabilities regarding ACA Code Section 6055 (Employer Shared Responsibility Penalty). Will you be able to file IRS Forms 1094-B and 1095-B on behalf of the City?

Data Transfer

45. Does your system have the capability to transmit and receive eligibility and other data electronically? Please describe your data transfer capabilities. 

46. How are file transfers or other data interfaces executed and secured? 

· Describe your authentication process and various levels of user security.

· What measures do you have in place to prevent unauthorized access? 

· How are passwords protected? 

47. Do you have experience developing interfaces for and transferring eligibility files to the City’s current vendors listed under section 2.0 Background (Anthem, Kaiser, CVS, Delta Dental, VSP)? Or accepting data files electronically from these vendors? Do you have an established method with these vendors for receiving and sending files securely? 

48. When you transfer files are the files digitally signed?

49. Does your system provide confirmations when files are sent or received?

50. In transmitting data to carriers, do you employ fully automated, electronic file feeds? Can these file feeds be customized to carrier specifications? Can you adhere to ANSI file standards in accordance with HIPAA?

51. Describe the audit and reconciliation processes you perform on transaction exchanges.

52. Does your system allow for direct interface with or the ability to create data file exports for payroll systems? If so, please describe your system’s capabilities.

Reporting Capabilities

53. Please describe your system’s reporting capabilities and the other reports that you provide as part of your standard reporting package. Please provide samples of your standard reports.

54. Please confirm your ability to comply with the reporting requirements outlined in Section 3, as well as any deviations from the requirements. 

55. Would you provide ad-hoc data reports at the City’s request? If so, please describe your ad-hoc data reporting capabilities. Would there be additional fees for programming these reports? If so, please provide your pricing schedule, including computer programming time per hour.

56. Are reports available online? Can they be downloaded into other applications (specify applications)? If reports can be downloaded, are they transferred by a secure method?

57. Do you have system activity reports? Do you have an activity report for open enrollment?

HIPAA Administration Simplification Provisions

58. Describe the process used by your company to comply with HIPAA EDI, Privacy, and Security requirements. Have you received external or independent certification regarding your HIPAA compliance?

59. Describe your HIPAA compliance solution and certification relative to the Operating Rules concerning eligibility for a health plan.

60. Is your staff trained on all Privacy and Security requirements? Describe your training program and enforcement policy.

61. How is security set up in the system? What are the different levels of security?

62. Is your system database encrypted? 

63. Are data backups encrypted? Do you store backup media off-site and if so, how are they transported off site?

64. Are all electronic transmissions of PHI, including eligibility files, authorizations, reports, etc., encrypted or sent via secure means? Which encryption methods do you support for e-mails and file transmissions? Please describe.

65. What are your procedures for data destruction prior to hardware and media disposal?

Implementation and Transition Issues

66. Please confirm that you understand the requested system functionality and scope of services and that you will be able to complete all implementation activities by July 1, 2017 (or within 90 days of being notified). What is the minimum amount of time recommended to ensure a clean transition of the proposed system(s)? 

67. Provide an implementation schedule including dates, tasks and persons responsible to successfully implement the system effective July 1, 2017. What are the major milestones and events associated with your implementation plan? Describe the process and include a timetable, beginning with contract award to effective date. 

Performance Standards

68. Are you willing to provide performance standards part of the contract? What performance standards would you be willing to include in a contract with the City?
PROPONENT INFORMATION SHEET
	Organization Name:
	

	Date Founded
	

	Contact Person’s Name
	

	Title
	

	Address
	

	City/State
	

	Phone Number
	

	E-mail Address
	

	Fax Number
	

	Website
	


	CURRENT CLIENT REFERENCES

 (list a minimum of 4) Public Sector reference encouraged

	Name
	Contact Name
	Phone Number and Client Location
	Number of Employees
	Contract Start Date

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	RECENTLY TERMINATED CLIENTS

	Name
	Contact Name
	Phone Number
	Termination Reason
	Termination Date

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	






Authorized Signature
FINANCIAL EXHIBITS

Fees should include all system functionality and support services outlined in this RFP. List in Table 2 any services that you would not provide or that are not included in your fees. 

Please be advised that if your quotes are not “firm” or “final” you must clearly indicate it in your proposal and explain exactly what information will be needed in order for the quote to become final. In providing fee estimates please keep in mind the following:

1. Please complete the tables that are at the end of this section. Include all assumptions used to develop the fees. In preparing the tables, please keep in mind the following:

a. Any set-up fees to transfer records from the current system and/or manual records to your system should be listed separately; and

b. Any special fees or charges of any kind for services or supplies that will not be covered by your proposed fee must be disclosed in your proposal. Please describe any services or supplies you will not cover. 

c. Fees should be quoted on a per employee/subscriber basis. The only exceptions are for the one-time setup fees and additional interface fees.
d. Per employee/subscriber or rates should not stipulate the number of enrollees or require adjustment contingent upon fluctuations in enrollment 
e. Rates should be all-inclusive with no “pass-through” charges. All services provided in relation to performance under the contract must be included in the per employee/subscriber rates.

2. Please confirm that:

	
	Confirmed
	Not Confirmed
	Comments

	All fees are guaranteed for 36 months from contract inception. Fees are guaranteed for 12 months upon renewal after the initial contract expiration (at the City’s option), and that all future rate adjustments will be subject to annual renewal (e.g., at least 12 months) in the absence of any major plan revisions
	(
	(
	

	All future rate adjustments will be communicated at least 60 days in advance of the effective date
	(
	(
	

	Transfer all records to the City or a successor vendor within 30 days of termination in a form that is acceptable to the recipient
	(
	(
	


Table 1 – Summary of Fees

	Service
	Monthly Fee

	
	Year 1
	Year 2
	Year 3
	Year 4
	Year 5

	Eligibility and Enrollment System:

· Please include basis of fees (e.g., PEPM, flat monthly, one-time bundled, etc.) 
· If fees are quoted on a PEPM basis, please base on X,000 participants
	
	
	
	
	

	Other Fees (If not included above):

· Interfaces

· User Training/Documentation
· Other
	
	
	
	
	

	Software Support/Maintenance
	
	
	
	
	

	One-Time Set-Up/Implementation Fee
	
	
	
	
	

	Total Monthly Fees
	
	
	
	
	

	Total Annual Fees
	
	
	
	
	


Table 2 – Fees and Services

	List of all functionality/services that are included in fees outlined above

	

	Any special fees, charges or expenses of any kind not included in the base fees outlined above – Any service or charge not listed will be assumed to be included in the proposed fees and may not be billed to the City

	

	List of functionality/services not included in fees outlined above, along with associated additional fees - Any service or charge not listed will be assumed to be included in the proposed fees and may not be billed to the City

	


Authorized Signature

Title

Name of Company

Date
24

